
1 of 2 
 

EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
May 24, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 
 

Call to Order 
1. Roll Call ___ Roberts ____ Longanecker ____ Brown _____ Conus ____ Lewis 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Approve Minutes for May 10, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting 
5. Consider Resolution No. 05-24-18A Approving The Mayoral Appointments For The City 

Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal Judge, And City Attorney For The City Of Edgerton, 
Kansas 

6. Consider the Purchase of a 2018 Mahindra 2555 Compact Utility Tractor 
7. Consider the Purchase of a Caterpillar CB24 Asphalt Roller   
8. Consider Resolution 05-24-18B Authorizing the Closure of Certain Public Streets During the 

Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party 
9. Consider Resolution 05-24-18C Recognizing the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party as a 

“Public Festival” for Purposes of the City’s Noise Restrictions 
10. Consider Final Acceptance of the Dollar General/Project Eisenhower Public Infrastructure 

and Authorize Final Payment to Colby Series 17, LLC 
11. Consider Final Acceptance of Arrowhead Sanitary Sewer and Authorize Final Payment 
12. Consider Resolution 05-24-18D Appointing Rachel James as City Clerk and Scott Peterson as 

Deputy City Clerk  
13. Consider Resolution 05-24-18E Approving Banking Resolution with Central Bank of the 

Midwest 
 

Regular Agenda 
14. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items not on 

the agenda and that are under the jurisdiction of the City Council may do so when called 
upon by the Mayor. Comments on personnel matters and matters pending before court or 
other outside tribunals are not permitted. Please notify the City Clerk before the meeting if 
you wish to speak. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. Any presentation is for 
informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 
 

15. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 
have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 

 
16. Presentation by Gardner Edgerton Chamber of Commerce for 2019 Fiscal Year Budget 

Request.   
 

Business Requiring Action 
  



2 of 2 
 

17. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A REQUEST BY THE FRONTIER DAYS 
ASSOCIATION FOR A WAIVER (AS ALLOWED PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-202 OF 
ARTICLE 1 OF CHAPTER III OF THE CITY CODE) FROM THE PROHIBITION 
AGAINST SERVING ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR WITHIN 300 FEET OF THE LIBRARY FOR 
THE JUNE 15 AND 16, 2018 ANNUAL FRONTIER DAYS FESTIVAL 

 
 
18. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 05-24-18F AUTHORIZING SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT 

FOR SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON CERTAIN PUBLIC 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 
 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
 

19. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 1081 ADOPTING A RECOMMENDATION BY THE CITY 
OF EDGERTON PLANNING COMMISSION TO APPROVE REZONING OF 
APPROXIMATELY 120 ACRES OF LAND [LOCATED ON THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF FOUR CORNERS ROAD AND 199TH STREET] IN EDGERTON, KANSAS FROM 
JOHNSON COUNTY RUR, RURAL ZONING TO CITY OF EDGERTON L-P LOGISTICS 
PARK ZONING DISTRICT.  

 
 Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 

 
20. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 1082 AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE 

LPKC DISTRICT NO. 1 COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, LEVYING 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS WITHIN SUCH DISTRICT, AND APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
 Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
21. Report by the City Administrator 

 
22. Report by the Mayor 

 
23. Future Meeting/Event Reminders: 

• June 2nd: 6:30-9:00 PM – Summer Kickoff Block Party 
• June 2nd: 9:00-11:00 PM – Downtown Summer Movie Night 
• June 7th 7:00 PM – Budget Work Session and Citizen Survey Review 
• June 15th-16th – Edgerton Frontier Days 
• June 20th: 12:00 PM – Senior Lunch 
 

24. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____  



City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Regular Session 

May 10, 2018 
 
 A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson 

Edgerton, Kansas on May 10, 2018.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor 
Roberts presiding. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

Ron Conus  present 
Clay Longanecker present 
Josh Lewis  present 
Jody Brown  present 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Beth Linn 
    Assistant City Administrator/Interim City Clerk Scott Peterson 
    City Attorney Lee Hendricks 
    Parks Maintenance Bob McVey 
    Development Services Director Katy Crow 
    Finance Director Karen Kindle 
    Public Works Superintendent Trey Whitaker 
     
 
 

2.  WELCOME  
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
4. Minutes for April 25 Special City Council Meeting were considered 
5. Minutes for April 26 Regular City Council Meeting were considered 
6. Resolution 05-10-18A Appointing Katy Crow as Zoning Administrator for the City of Edgerton 

was considered  
7. Final Acceptance of North Widmer Main & Lift Station and Authorize Final Payment was 

considered 
8. Final Acceptance of North Widmer Gravity Main Extension and Authorize Final Payment was 

considered 
9. Final Acceptance of Big Industrial Lift Station and Force Main and Authorize Final Payment 

was considered 
10. Final Acceptance of Big Industrial Phase I Main and Authorize Final Payment was considered 
11. Final Acceptance of Big Industrial Phase II and Authorize Final Payment was considered 
12. Three-Year Agreement with Varney & Associates, CPAs, LLC, to Prepare the City’s Financial 

Audit for Fiscal Years 2018, 2019 and 2020 was considered 
13. Approval of 2018 Annual Street Maintenance Program, with McAnany Construction, Inc for 

Ultrathin Bonded Asphalt Surface & Mill and Overlay was considered 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 10, 2018 

Page 2 
 
At the request of Mayor Roberts, Consent Agenda Item #4 was removed for further 
discussion.  
 
Motion by Brown, Second by Longanecker, to approve the Consent Agenda Items #5-13. 
Motion was approved 4-0.  
 
Mayor Roberts presented an updated Consent Agenda Item #4, Minutes for April 25 Special 
City Council Meeting. The updated item had minor edits made to the original by City 
Attorney Lee Hendricks.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Lewis, to approve Consent Agenda Item #4. Motion was 
approved 4-0.  
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
   
 

14. Public Comments.  
 
There were no public comments for the May 10, 2018 meeting.  
 

15. Declaration. None.  
 
  

16.  CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 05-10-18D AUTHORIZING THE CLOSURE OF 
CERTAIN PUBLIC STREETS DURING THE EDGERTON FRONTIER DAYS FESTIVAL, 
PERMISSION TO USE REQUESTED CITY BUILDINGS/PUBLIC SPACES, AND THE 
APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL SERVICE REQUESTS 
 
Assistant City Administrator Scott Peterson presented the resolution to Council. The Frontier 
Days Committee is requesting the closure of the same streets as previous years for the 
Frontier Days Festival, to be held June 15th and 16th; the only exception to the request road 
closures is to East 4th Street, which the Frontier Days Committee and City Staff are 
requesting to be closed further North to McCarty Street, which is farther than in previous 
years.  Mayor Roberts requested that City Staff ensure that handicap parking is made 
available and easily accessible for the Frontier Days festival. Mr. Peterson replied that they 
would make sure to accommodate handicap parking. 
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Lewis, to approve Resolution 05-10-18D. Motion was 
approved 4-0.   
 

17.  PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A REQUEST BY THE FRONTIER DAYS 
ASSOCIATION FOR A WAIVER (AS ALLOWED PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-202 OF 
ARTICLE 1 OF CHAPTER III OF THE CITY CODE) FROM THE PROHIBITION 
AGAINST SERVING ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR WITHIN 300 FEET OF THE LIBRARY FOR 
THE JUNE 15 AND 16, 2018 ANNUAL FRONTIER DAYS FESTIVAL 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 10, 2018 

Page 3 
Mayor Roberts announced that this Public Hearing would be held at the next regularly 
scheduled City Council Meeting, Thursday, May 24, 2018, to provide staff time to provide 
proper notification and advertisement of the hearing.  
 
 

18.  CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 05-10-18E TEMPORARILY WAIVING CITY 
PROHIBITION AS TO THE SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON 
CERTAIN PUBLIC PROPERTY, AND RECOGNIZING FRONTIER DAYS AS A “PUBLIC 
FESTIVAL” FOR PURPOSES OF THE CITY’S NOISE RESTRICTIONS 
 
Due to the previous item being held at the next City Council meeting, Mayor Roberts 
requested that this item ne tabled until the May 24 City Council Meeting.  
 
Motion by Brown, Second by Longanecker, to table Resolution 05-10-18E until the May 24 
City Council Meeting. Motion was approved 4-0.  
 

19.  CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 05-10-18F AUTHORIZING SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT 
FOR SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON CERTAIN PUBLIC 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
Assistant City Administrator Scott Peterson presented the resolution to Council. This is the 
resolution required by state law for the City Council to approve to allow for the sale of 
alcohol on public property. The alcohol at the Frontier Days festival will be kept and sold out 
of the garage at 305 E Nelson, which is owned by the City.  
 
Motion by Lewis, Second by Brown to approve Resolution 05-10-18F. Motion was approved 
4-0. 

 
20. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING RESOLUTION NO. 05-10-18G DETERMINING THE 

INTENT OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, TO ISSUE ITS INDUSTRIAL 
REVENUE BONDS IN THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF $100,000,000 TO PAY THE 
COST OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING AND EQUIPPING COMMERCIAL 
FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT OF WELLSVILLE FARMS, LLC, OR ITS ASSIGNS  
 
Mayor Roberts opened the Public Hearing.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Scott Anderson, Bond Counsel, presented the resolution and cost benefit report to the 
Council. The resolution, if approved, would issue industrial revenue bonds to the Kubota 
facility currently under construction, which was previously referred to as Project Mustang.  
 
Mayor Roberts closed the Public Hearing.  
 
There were no comments by City Council.  
 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 10, 2018 

Page 4 
21.  CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 05-10-18G DETERMINING THE INTENT OF THE 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, TO ISSUE ITS INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS IN 
THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT OF $100,000,000 TO PAY THE COST OF ACQUIRING, 
CONSTRUCTING AND EQUIPPING COMMERCIAL FACILITIES FOR THE BENEFIT 
OF WELLSVILLE FARMS, LLC, OR ITS ASSIGNS 
 
Scott Anderson, Bond Counsel, stood for questions from the City Council. The Resolution of 
Intent (ROI) follows the same format as previous ROIs approved by Council. The exception 
to this ROI is that it does not have a “Master” ROI that it applies to, but instead applies 
specifically to this project alone.  
 
Due to the size of the project, Mr. Anderson stated that it would probably be later in the 
year before staff would be back before Council to issue the Industrial Revenue Bonds.  
 
Mayor Roberts stated that due to the size of the project, the City will be over doubling its 
net assessed value when it is constructed.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Brown, to approve Resolution 05-10-18G. Motion was 
approved 4-0.  

 
 
22.  CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 1080 AUTHORIZING BOND DOCUMENTS AND THE 

ISSUANCE OF THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS (COLDPOINT 
LOGISTICS REAL ESTATE, LLC SECOND EXPANSION PROJECT) SERIES 2018, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING AND PROVIDING TAX ABATEMENT FOR A 
WAREHOUSE AND COLD-STORAGE DISTRIBUTION FACILITY 
 
Scott Anderson, Bond Council, also presented this ordinance to the Council. Mr. Anderson 
stated that this is the third phase of Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRBs) for the Coldpoint 
facility. Due to the nature of the facility, and it being constructed in phases, the IRBs for this 
project are also issued in phases. This will be the third issues phase of IRBs. The first phase 
was approved in 2016, the second in 2017. The third phase of bonds will officially begin in 
2019. Mr. Anderson reminded the Council that each phase of bonds has its own abatement 
sunset schedule, so they do not reset each time a new phase is issued.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Brown to approve Ordinance 1080. Motion was 
approved 4-0.  
 

23. REPORT BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
City Administrator Beth Linn introduced Karen Kindle, Finance Director, to discuss the 
Quarterly Financial Report for this past quarter. Ms. Kindle stated that revenues and 
expenditures are generally meeting expectations, although in some departments, like Parks 
and Recreation, the busy seasons haven’t started yet.  
 
Ms. Linn asked the City Council for direction on a possible sewer meter at the Midwest 
Gateway facilities at the Logistics Park. Ms. Linn stated that the owners of Midwest Gateway 
have requested a separate sewer meter, instead of being charged for water usage. Ms. Linn 



City of Edgerton Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 10, 2018 

Page 5 
stated that staff have been unable to find a meter that is compatible with the City’s utility 
software, and the City has never received a request like this before. Council stated that the 
property should follow the same code as the rest of the properties in the City, and therefore 
should not be allowed to have a separate sewer meter.  
 

24. REPORT BY THE MAYOR 
 
None.  
 

25. FUTURE MEETING/EVENT REMINDERS 
 

• May 16th 12:00 PM – Senior Lunch 
• May 24th 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 
• June 2nd: 6:30-9:00 PM – Summer Kickoff Block Party 
• June 2nd: 9:00-11:00 PM – Downtown Summer Movie Night 
• June 7th 7:00 PM – Budget Work Session and Citizen Survey Review 
• June 15th-16th – Edgerton Frontier Days 

  
26.  CONSIDER RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-

4319 (B) (2) FOR CONSULTATION WITH AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN 
THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR 
 
Motion by Lewis, Second by Longanecker to recess into Executive Session for twenty 
minutes. Motion was approved 4-0.  
 
The Open Session recessed at 7:54 p.m.  
 
The Executive Session convened at 8:02 pm.  
 
Motion by Lewis, Second by Longanecker to continue the Executive Session for an additional 
ten minutes. The Executive Session continued at 8:23 pm.  
 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
 
Motion by Lewis, Second by Longanecker to reconvene into Open Session. Motion was 
approved 4-0. The Open Session reconvened at 8:34 pm.  

 
27. ADJOURN 
 
 Motion by Brown, Second by Lewis, to adjourn. Motion was approved 4-0. The meeting 
 adjourned at 8:34 pm.  



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-24-18A Approving The Mayoral 
Appointments For The City Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal Judge, And City 
Attorney For The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #:  
 
Department: Administration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
 
Chapter 1, Article 3, Section 301 of the Edgerton City Code states that at the first regular 
meeting in May of each year the mayor, by and with the consent of the council, shall appoint 
a city treasurer, and may appoint a city attorney, municipal judge and such other officers as 
may be deemed necessary for the best interest of the city.  
 
Draft Resolution 05-24-18A includes appointment for City Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal 
Judge, and City Attorney as listed below.  
 
City Treasurer: Irene Eastwood  
City Prosecutor: Gerald Merrill  
Municipal Judge: Karen Torline  
City Attorney: Lee Hendricks 
 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): Edgerton City Code Chapter 1, Article 3, Section 301 

 
 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 



Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-24-18A Approving The Mayoral 
Appointments For The City Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal Judge, And City 
Attorney For The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: 
Draft Resolution No. 05-24-18A 
 
Prepared by: Beth Linn, City Administrator 
  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 05-24-18A 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MAYORAL APPOINTMENTS FOR THE CITY 
TREASURER, CITY PROSECUTOR, MUNICIPAL JUDGE, AND CITY ATTORNEY FOR THE 
CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
WHEREAS, City Code requires the Mayor to appoint certain public officials; 

WHEREAS, the appointments named below meet all qualifications set forth by City Code; 

WHEREAS, the Mayor hereby appoints, subject to the approval of the City Council, the 
individuals named below to fill the public appointments for the City of Edgerton, Kansas; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS: 

SECTION ONE:  The City Council hereby approves the following Mayoral appointments to 
serve the City of Edgerton: 
 

Irene Eastwood to serve as City Treasurer; 
Gerald Merrill to serve as City Prosecutor; 
Karen Torline to serve as Municipal Judge; and 
Lee Hendricks to serve as City Attorney  

 
SECTION TWO:  EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its adoption by the 
Governing Body.  
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 
KANSAS ON THE 24th DAY OF MAY, 2018.    
       
      CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
       
 
      By: _____________________________________ 
                    Donald Roberts, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Scott Peterson, Interim City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney 
       



 

Agenda Item: Consider the Purchase of a Compact Utility Tractor  

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #: 
 
Department: Fleet: Vehicle and Equipment, Parks 

 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
In 2015, the Edgerton City Council adopted a revised Vehicle and Equipment Replacement 
Policy. The stated purpose of the policy is to provide effective guidelines for administering and 
accounting for the City’s vehicle and equipment replacement; to provide a framework for 
decisions relating to replacement; and to act as a budgeting guide for the Governing Body and 
Staff.  
 
The 2017 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Schedule identified the recommendation for a 
new purchase of a Utility Tractor. This request was made due the outgoing unit had come to 
the end of its useful life, as well the operations and maintenance in the parks have continued 
to increase and the need for a larger unit with more capacity was determined.  
 
Per the Vehicle and Equipment schedule this unit was slated for replacement until 2017; 
however, the existing Compact Utility Tractor was damaged in the flood on August 22nd, 
sustaining a total loss of the unit. Staff identified the need to push this purchase to 2018, as 
the need to replace and purchase task critical equipment took priority.  
 
Consistent with the City’s Purchasing Policy, staff obtained at least three written quotes for the 
purchase of a Compact Utility Tractor complete with loader attachment and supporting bucket, 
core aerator and additional set of turf tire and wheels. Staff researched companies and 
collected proposals from three different dealers within the Metro area based on prior research 
and networking with other municipalities. 
 
The Compact Utility Tractor is a key component in the day to day maintenance activities within 
the City of Edgerton Parks. The proposed unit has increased capacity, this includes 
horsepower, increased implement capacity which will allow staff the option to utilize more 
attachments as needs are identified. This Compact Utility Tractor includes a loader 
attachment, this unit will be set up with the ability to utilize the front attachments from the 
John Deere skid loader that was a total loss in the flood. In addition, Mahindra provides a 
seven (7) year powertrain warranty, this exceeds the warranty provided by the other 
manufactures significantly. 
 



Recommendation: Approve the purchase of a 2018 Mahindra 2555 
Compact Utility Tractor an Amount not to Exceed $37,350.00 

 
This unit provides Parks Staff the capability to core aerate, spread granular fertilizer and weed 
control, chemical spray application, drag baseball infields, load and unload material, remove 
debris, maintain and upkeep green spaces and open fields, and the multitude of other Parks 
activities and tasks. This unit will also expand the capability of snow removal in Parks, parking 
lots and provide additional capability of loading salt as necessary or if needed. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): 

 
 
 
Funding Source: Vehicle and Equipment Reserve - General 
 
 
Budget Allocated:   
 
 
Finance Director Approval:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: Compact Utility Tractor Vehicle & Equipment Request Form 
  Bid Documents 
 
 
Prepared by:  Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent 

Bob McVey, Parks Maintenance Technician II  
  
 





Date: 13 April 2018 Offer Expires: 13 May 2018

Confidential

Quote Id: 17174259

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062
 913-529-2376
hti@heritagetractor.com

Prepared For:

City Of Edgerton

Proposal For:

Delivering Dealer:
Rowdy Reed

Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062

hti@heritagetractor.com

Quote Prepared By:
Rowdy Reed
creed@heritagetractor.com



ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT  
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062
 913-529-2376
hti@heritagetractor.com

Confidential

Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Quote Summary

Prepared For:
City Of Edgerton
Po Box 255
Edgerton, KS 66021
Business:  913-893-6801

Delivering Dealer:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.

Rowdy Reed
19905 W 157th Street

Olathe, KS 66062
Phone:  913-529-2376

creed@heritagetractor.com

 Quote ID: 17174259
13 April 2018
13 April 2018

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 13 May 2018

Equipment Summary Suggested List Selling Price Qty Extended

JOHN DEERE 4044R Compact 
Utility Tractor (33 PTO hp)

$ 40,642.00 $ 33,123.21 X 1 = $ 33,123.21

Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

JOHN DEERE 440R Loader $ 5,789.00 $ 4,718.03 X 1 = $ 4,718.03

Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

3 Point Hitch Downforce Kit $ 1,094.50 $ 892.02 X 1 = $ 892.02

Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

27x10.5-15 (4PR R3 Turf 2 Pos.) 
Front Wheels and Tires

$ 707.30 $ 576.45 X 1 = $ 576.45

Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

44x18-20 (4PR, R3 Turf, 1 Position) 
Rear Wheels & Tires

$ 1,885.40 $ 1,536.60 X 1 = $ 1,536.60

Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

Frontier CA2072 - 6 Ft. Standard 
Duty Core Aerator

$ 4,193.00 $ 3,417.29 X 1 = $ 3,417.29

Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018



ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT  
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062
 913-529-2376
hti@heritagetractor.com

Confidential

Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Equipment Total $ 44,263.60

* Includes Fees and Non-contract items Quote Summary

Equipment Total $ 44,263.60

Trade In 
SubTotal $ 44,263.60
Est. Service 
Agreement Tax

$ 0.00

Total $ 44,263.60

Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 44,263.60



Quote Id: 17174259 Customer Name: CITY OF EDGERTON

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062
 913-529-2376
hti@heritagetractor.com

JOHN DEERE 4044R Compact Utility Tractor (33 PTO hp)
Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 

22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

Suggested List *
$ 40,642.00
Selling Price *
$ 33,123.21

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
0321LV 4044R Compact Utility 

Tractor (33 PTO hp)
1 $ 31,076.00 18.50 $ 5,749.06 $ 25,326.94 $ 25,326.94

Standard Options - Per Unit
0202 United States 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
0409 English Operator's Manual 

and Decal Kit
1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1520 eHydro 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
1795 Less Loader 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
2050 Cab with Standard Seat 1 $ 8,289.00 18.50 $ 1,533.47 $ 6,755.53 $ 6,755.53
2660 Factory Installed Stereo 1 $ 471.00 18.50 $ 87.14 $ 383.86 $ 383.86
4060 iMatch Quick Hitch Category 

1
1 $ 291.00 18.50 $ 53.84 $ 237.16 $ 237.16

5091 Wheel Spacer 1 $ 420.00 18.50 $ 77.70 $ 342.30 $ 342.30
5240 16.9-24 (6PR, R4 Industrial, 

2 Position)
1 $ -40.00 18.50 $ -7.40 $ -32.60 $ -32.60

6240 10-16.5 (6PR, R4 Industrial, 
2 Position)

1 $ 135.00 18.50 $ 24.98 $ 110.02 $ 110.02

Standard Options Total $ 9,566.00 $ 1,769.73 $ 7,796.27 $ 7,796.27

Value Added Services 
Total

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Suggested Price $ 33,123.21
Total Selling Price $ 40,642.00 $ 7,518.79 $ 33,123.21 $ 33,123.21

JOHN DEERE 440R Loader



Quote Id: 17174259 Customer Name: CITY OF EDGERTON

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062
 913-529-2376
hti@heritagetractor.com

Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 
22)

Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

Suggested List *
$ 5,789.00

Selling Price *
$ 4,718.03

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
1390P 440R Loader 1 $ 6,218.00 18.50 $ 1,150.33 $ 5,067.67 $ 5,067.67

Standard Options - Per Unit
0202 United States 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
0409 English 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
1402 Mounting frame 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
2401 440R Standard loader non-

self-leveling (NSL)
1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

4401 Hoses to tractor mid-valve 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
5371 Deluxe hood guard 1 $ 140.00 18.50 $ 25.90 $ 114.10 $ 114.10
6995 Less ballast box 1 $ 0.00 18.50 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
7410 Skid Steer carrier 1 $ 305.00 18.50 $ 56.43 $ 248.57 $ 248.57
8750 Less bucket 1 $ -874.00 18.50 $ -161.69 $ -712.31 $ -712.31

Standard Options Total $ -429.00 $ -79.36 $ -349.64 $ -349.64

Suggested Price $ 4,718.03
Total Selling Price $ 5,789.00 $ 1,070.97 $ 4,718.03 $ 4,718.03

3 Point Hitch Downforce Kit
Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 

22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

Suggested List *
$ 1,094.50

Selling Price *
$ 892.02

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
BLV109 

68
3 Point Hitch Downforce Kit 1 $ 1,094.50 18.50 $ 202.48 $ 892.02 $ 892.02



Quote Id: 17174259 Customer Name: CITY OF EDGERTON

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062
 913-529-2376
hti@heritagetractor.com

Suggested Price $ 892.02
Total Selling Price $ 1,094.50 $ 202.48 $ 892.02 $ 892.02

27x10.5-15 (4PR R3 Turf 2 Pos.) Front Wheels and Tires
Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 

22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

Suggested List *
$ 707.30

Selling Price *
$ 576.45

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
BLV108 

74
27x10.5-15 (4PR R3 Turf 2 
Pos.) Front Wheels and 
Tires

1 $ 707.30 18.50 $ 130.85 $ 576.45 $ 576.45

Suggested Price $ 576.45
Total Selling Price $ 707.30 $ 130.85 $ 576.45 $ 576.45

44x18-20 (4PR, R3 Turf, 1 Position) Rear Wheels & Tires
Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 

22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

Suggested List *
$ 1,885.40

Selling Price *
$ 1,536.60

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
BLV108 

75
44x18-20 (4PR, R3 Turf, 1 
Position) Rear Wheels & 
Tires

1 $ 1,885.40 18.50 $ 348.80 $ 1,536.60 $ 1,536.60

Suggested Price $ 1,536.60
Total Selling Price $ 1,885.40 $ 348.80 $ 1,536.60 $ 1,536.60



Quote Id: 17174259 Customer Name: CITY OF EDGERTON

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580; DUNS#: 60-7690989

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Heritage Tractor, Inc.
19905 W 157th Street
Olathe, KS 66062
 913-529-2376
hti@heritagetractor.com

Frontier CA2072 - 6 Ft. Standard Duty Core Aerator
Contract: KS Lawn Equipment Contract 44069 (PG 18 CG 

22)
Price Effective Date: April 13, 2018

Suggested List *
$ 4,193.00

Selling Price *
$ 3,417.29

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
1132XF CA2072 - 6 Ft. Standard 

Duty Core Aerator
1 $ 3,458.00 18.50 $ 639.73 $ 2,818.27 $ 2,818.27

Standard Options - Per Unit
9000 Steel Weight Tank Quantity 

2 (2 Required per Machine)
1 $ 735.00 18.50 $ 135.98 $ 599.02 $ 599.02

Standard Options Total $ 735.00 $ 135.98 $ 599.02 $ 599.02

Suggested Price $ 3,417.29
Total Selling Price $ 4,193.00 $ 775.71 $ 3,417.29 $ 3,417.29



Confidential

Extended Repair Plan Proposal                         PowerGard™ Protection Plan Residential

Date : April 13, 2018
Machine/Use Information Plan Description Price

Manufacturer JOHN DEERE Plan Type: Deductible:

Equipment Type 4044R TRAC Coverage: Quoted Price $ 0.00

Model 4044R TRAC Total Months:

Total Hours:
THIS PROPOSAL IS VALID FOR 30-DAYS FROM DATE ISSUED. GRACE pricing is offered only early during the Deere basic warranty period and has no surcharges. After this period, 
DELAYED PURCHASE pricing (surcharged) is offered later during the John Deere Basic Warranty. Many PowerGard quotes presented in the Delayed Purchase Period will require 
inspection/certification process and must also past fluid testing.  The Total Months and Total Hours listed above include the John Deere Basic Warranty terms (24 months / 2000 hours on 
Tractors, 24 months on Golf & Turf Products, 12 months for all AG Harvesting and Sprayer equipment, and 12 months/1000 hours on most Gator Utility Vehicles)."Limited" Plan coverage = 
Engine & Powertrain only. “Comprehensive” Plan coverage = Full Machine.

Customer Name - Please Print

Customer Signature

 Proposal Prepared for: I have been offered this coverage and

I ACCEPT the Residential plan

I DECLINE the Residential plan✔

If declined, I fully understand that my equipment listed 
above is not covered for repair expenses due to 
component failures beyond the original basic warranty 
period provided by John Deere.

This is not a contract. For specific PowerGard™ Protection plan Residential coverage, please refer to the 
terms and conditions on John Deere's public website(www.JohnDeere.com) under Services & Support 
>Warranty > Extended Warranties > PowerGard protection plan Residential.

Note :

PowerGard™ Protection Plan Residential (Residential plan) is:
The PowerGard™ Protection Plan Residential is an extended repair plan that provides parts and labor coverage 
up to four years beyond the manufacturer's warranty.It is available on all riding lawn equipment,zero-turn radius 
mowers, utility vehicles, utility tractors and compact utility tractors.Your John Deere equipment will be in the 
hands of qualified, certified technicians from John Deere dealers using Genuine John Deere Parts.

Not covered under a Residential plan:
Residential plans do not cover routine maintenance services or items normally designed to be replaced by the 
purchaser due to normal wear and tear. They do not cover any product used for commercial or rental 
applications. They also do not cover repairs for damage from accident, misuse, fire, theft, or exposure to weather 
conditions such as lightning, hail, flood or water. See the actual PowerGard™ Protection Plan Residential Terms 
and Conditions for a complete listing of coverage,and limitations and conditions under the program.



Confidential

Benefits of a Residential plan:
Offer the choice of adding up to 4 years of repair coverage beyond the machine's factory warranty.
Do not require preapproval before repairs are made by the authorized John Deere dealership.
Is transferable by the original purchaser for the balance of the original agreement period.
Ensures higher resale value and makes equipment more marketable during sale or trade-in.
Comprehensive Plans:

No deductibles and no out-of-pocket costs on covered repairs.
Free transportation for factory warranty and extended repair plan repairs for the term of the plan(Note:A 
surcharge may apply for machines located outside of the dealership's normal service area).

Limited Powertrain Plans:

Low deductibles on covered repairs
Do not provide transportation coverage



ROMANS Outdoor Power Quote
203 Crestview Circle
Louisburg, KS 66053 (913) 837-5225

QUOTE TO: Advanced Erosion Control 

404 E Nelson INVOICE DATE  April 16, 2018

OUR ORDER NO.  

YOUR ORDER NO.  

TERMS  

SHIPPED TO: SALES REP  Dave Rohl

 Same SHIPPED VIA   

F.O.B.   

            PREPAID or COLLECT  

Sales Tax Rate:     0.00%

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 Kubota L4760 HSTC tractor w/ LA1055 loader/bucket $39,000.00 

1 Land Pride CA1572 core aerator  $1,550.00 

1 Top-n-tilt kit (down pressure kit)  $871.00 

1 2 sets of rear hydraulic remotes (required for top-n-tilt) $1,383.00 

1 1 set rear wheel weights (64lbs each side)  $158.00 

1 Extra set of turf tires/wheels $2,358.00 

 

 

Price includes all rebates and discounts; delivery; and a  

 full tank of fuel.  

  SUBTOTAL $45,320.00

    TAX Gov't Exempt

  FREIGHT included

DIRECT ALL INQUIRIES TO: MAKE ALL CHECKS PAYABLE TO:
Dave Rohl Romans Outdoor Power
(913) 837-5225
email: daverohl@gmail.com 203 Crestview Circle

Louisburg, KS 66053

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

City of Edgerton, Kansas

Edgerton,  KS  66021

Attn: Accounts Receivable















 

Agenda Item: Consider Purchase of Vibratory Roller 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #: 
 
Department: Public Works 

 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
In 2015, the Edgerton City Council adopted a revised Vehicle and Equipment Replacement 
Policy. The stated purpose of the policy is to provide effective guidelines for administering and 
accounting for the City’s vehicle and equipment replacement; to provide a framework for 
decisions relating to replacement; and to act as a budgeting guide for the Governing Body and 
Staff.  
 
At the Council Meeting on April 23rd, 2015, City Council approved the purchase of the Dynapac 
CC90G Vibratory Roller. Per the Vehicle and Equipment schedule this unit was not slated for 
replacement until 2025; however, the roller was damaged in the flood on August 22nd, 
sustaining a total loss of the unit.  
 
Consistent with the City’s Purchasing Policy, staff obtained at least three written quotes for the 
purchase of a Vibratory Asphalt Roller complete with safety lighting, roll over protection and 
extended premier warranty with travel. Staff researched companies and collected proposals 
from three different dealers within the Metro area based on prior research and networking 
with other municipalities. 
 
The proposed replacement unit moves up a size in capacity and increases the roller drum 
width. The Dynapac CC90G Vibratory Roller was a 36’’ drum unit with an operating capacity of 
1.5-tons. The proposed replacement unit is a Caterpillar CB24B, this unit has a 48’’ drum size, 
which increases the productivity per pass, additionally; this unit has an operating capacity of 3 
tons. Moving up to the 3-ton unit allows for better compaction of base and surface material, 
this will reduce the number of passes required to properly compact a given asphalt patch, with 
the wider drum this unit will also allow for a reduced number of passes as well.  
 
After demoing each of the proposed units, staff’s recommendation was made due to the ease 
of operation, increased compaction levels, operators level of comfort with the machine 
including visibility, control format and shade canopy, and the premier warranty. The Caterpillar 
CB24B was quoted with premier warranty at 3-year/1000 hrs. with the travel. Other vendors 
and corresponding manufactures did not offer this level of service and with a 1-year warranty. 



Recommendation:  Approve the purchase of Caterpillar CB24 Asphalt 
Roller in an amount not to exceed $39,163. 

As we grow in our ongoing maintenance activities this unit will complement that growth and 
provide a vibratory roller that will better align with future needs.  
 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): 

 
 
 
Funding Source:  Equipment Reserve Fund - General 
 
 
Budget Allocated: Amount included in 2019 Vehicle & Equipment Schedule. 
 
 
Finance Director Approval:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: Vibratory Roller Vehicle & Equipment Request Form 
  Bid Documents  
 
Prepared by:  Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent   
 





4100 Gardner Avenue 
Kansas City, MO  64120 
Phone: (816) 241-9290 

Fax: (816) 241-1738 

Kansas City     Wichita     Joplin     Topeka     Garden City     Springfield 

 
January 26, 2018 
 
City of Edgerton 
Attn:  Cody Ferris 
Re:  Dynapac Double Drum Roller Proposal 
 
Dear Cody, 
 
Per your request see the following proposal: 
 
 1 – New Dynapac CC1000 Double Drum Asphalt Roller, 39” Wide Drums, Operating     
       weight of approximately 3700 lbs., Kubota 24HP Diesel Engine, etc.……. $31,890.00  
 
 1 – New Dynapac CC1100 Double Drum Asphalt Roller, 42” Wide Drums, Operating 
       weight of approximately 5,300 lbs., Kubota 25HP Diesel Engine, etc.…...$34,965.00 
 
 
Above prices does not include any applicable taxes.  Prices are FOB VLP-KC.  Lead-time is 
approximately 4-6 weeks from receipt of signed order.  Manufacturer’s warranty is one year 
from invoice date.  Quote is good for 30 days. 
 
See enclosed brochure for both the CC1000 and CC1100 for more detailed information.  If you 
have any questions please let me know.  I look forward to hearing back from you soon. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Rob Maggard 
Used Equipment Manager 
Sales Representative 
Case Product Specialist 
The Victor L. Phillips Company 
816-241-9290 
rmaggard@vlpco.com 
 
 



4100 Gardner Avenue 
Kansas City, MO  64120 
Phone: (816) 241-9290 

Fax: (816) 241-1738 

Kansas City     Wichita     Joplin     Topeka     Garden City     Springfield 

 
January 26, 2018 
 
City of Edgerton 
Attn:  Cody Ferris 
Re:  Dynapac Double Drum Roller Proposal 
 
Dear Cody, 
 
Per your request see the following proposal: 
 
 1 – New Dynapac CC1000 Double Drum Asphalt Roller, 39” Wide Drums, Operating     
       weight of approximately 3700 lbs., Kubota 24HP Diesel Engine, etc.……. $31,890.00  
 
 1 – New Dynapac CC1100 Double Drum Asphalt Roller, 42” Wide Drums, Operating 
       weight of approximately 5,300 lbs., Kubota 25HP Diesel Engine, etc.…...$34,965.00 
 
 
Above prices does not include any applicable taxes.  Prices are FOB VLP-KC.  Lead-time is 
approximately 4-6 weeks from receipt of signed order.  Manufacturer’s warranty is one year 
from invoice date.  Quote is good for 30 days. 
 
See enclosed brochure for both the CC1000 and CC1100 for more detailed information.  If you 
have any questions please let me know.  I look forward to hearing back from you soon. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Rob Maggard 
Used Equipment Manager 
Sales Representative 
Case Product Specialist 
The Victor L. Phillips Company 
816-241-9290 
rmaggard@vlpco.com 
 
 



1

Trey Whitaker

From: Phillip Brown <PBrown@Kirby-Smith.com>
Sent: Monday, March 26, 2018 10:27 AM
To: Trey Whitaker
Subject: HD 12 VV Hamm Roller
Attachments: Hamm HD12

Good morning Trey, 
 
Thanks for giving me a couple minutes of your time the other day. 
 
Below is the info on the used roller I have here on the yard.  
 
Hamm 
HD 12 VV  
47” double drum vibratory roller 
2015 
92 hours 
 
Options: 

 AIR CLEANER RESTRICTION IND LIGHT 
 ARTICULATED TANDEM ROLLER WITH 2 VIBRATORY DRUMS 
 DIESEL 30 HP 
 DRUM: 47.2 WIDE X 28.3 DIAMETER 2 DRUM OFFSET 
 HATZ 4W35 WATER-COOLED 4 CYL 
 HORN EMERGENCY STOP BUTTON. SPRINKLER SYSTEM: 
 HOURMETER PARKING BRAKE IND LIGHT LOW ENGINE OIL 
 NOZZLES 50 GAL CAP OTHER: ROPS (2 POST) 
 OPERATING WEIGHT 5942 LBS 
 PRESSURE WARNING LIGHT ALTERNATOR CHARGE LIGHT 
 PRESSURIZED SPRINKLER SYTEM W/ELEC PUMP INTERVAL 
 SIGNALS AND FLASHERS. BACKUP ALARM 
 SWITCH WATER FILTER HAND SERVICEABLE SPRINKLER 
 W/SEAT BELT FRONT AND REAR WORK LIGHTS TURN 

Sale Price this unit               $31,800 
New Sale price                     $37,300 
 
Let me know if you are interested we could do a 3‐4 month 100% applied RPO if you wanted.  

 
Thanks, 
 
Phil Brown 
Rental Sales Representative 
Kirby‐Smith Machinery, Inc. 
8320 Ruby Avenue 
Kansas City, KS 66111 
PBrown@Kirby‐Smith.com 
Main 913‐850‐6300 
Cell 816‐401‐2635 
WWW.Kirby‐Smith.com 
 

twhitaker
Highlight









 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-24-18B Authorizing the Closure of Certain Public Streets 
During the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-24-18B Authorizing the Closure of Certain Public 
Streets During the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #: No. 05-24-18B 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation  

 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: On Saturday, June 2nd, the City of Edgerton will host 
the Summer Kickoff Block Party in Downtown Edgerton. The event includes a block party with 
inflatables, games, DJ, face painting, contests and more from 6:30 PM to 9:00 PM. Once the 
sun goes down, the City will host the first Downtown Summer Movie Night featuring 
Despicable Me 3.  
 
To support this event, the Parks and Recreation Coordinator has requested the closure of 
Nelson Street (between East 4th Street and East 3rd Street) from 5:00 PM – 11:00 PM. 
 
City staff has reviewed the proposed street closures and does not anticipate any conflicts or 
issues. City staff will inform the Johnson County Sheriff’s Office, Johnson County Fire District 1 
and Johnson County Med-Act of the proposed closings.   
 
 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): 

 
 
 
Funding Source: 
 
 
Budget Allocated: _____________________ 
 
 
Finance Director Approval:  
 

 
 
 
 



Enclosed: Resolution No. 05-24-18B 
 
Prepared by: Madeline Becker, Parks and Recreation Coordinator  
  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 05-24-18B 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CLOSURE OF THE PUBLIC STREETS NAMED HEREIN 
DURING THE EDGERTON SUMMER KICKOFF BLOCK PARTY 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Edgerton, Kansas wishes to provide a safe 
and enjoyable Summer Kickoff Block Party; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the closure of certain streets would be 

beneficial to the safety and enjoyment of the Summer Kickoff Block Party; and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the proposed street closures and does not anticipate 
any conflicts or issues that would prevent said closures; and 
 

WHEREAS, the following public streets shall be closed to vehicular traffic during 
Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party between 5:00 PM until 11:00 PM on June 2, 2018: 

• Nelson Street between East 4th Street to East 3rd Street 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS that the City hereby authorizes the closure of the public streets named 
above for the duration named above for the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party. 
 
SECTION ONE: EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its adoption by the 
Governing Body. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 24TH DAY OF MAY, 2018. 
      
ATTEST:     CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
______________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Scott Peterson, City Clerk                    Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney  



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution 05-24-18C Recognizing the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party 
as a “Public Festival” for Purposes of the City’s Noise Restrictions 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 05-24-18C Recognizing the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block 
Party as a “Public Festival” for Purposes of the City’s Noise Restrictions 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #: No. 05-24-18C 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation 

 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: On Saturday, June 2nd, the City of Edgerton will host 
the Summer Kickoff Block Party in Downtown Edgerton. The event includes a block party with 
inflatables, games, DJ, face painting, contests and more from 6:30 PM to 9:00 PM. Once the 
sun goes down, the City will host the first Downtown Summer Movie Night featuring 
Despicable Me 3.  
 
Within this resolution is permission to waive the City’s noise restrictions on the evening of 
Saturday, June 2. It is anticipated that the event will be completed by 11 p.m. that evening. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of 
Edgerton 

 
 
 
Funding Source: 
 
 
Budget Allocated: _____________________ 
 
 
Finance Director Approval:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: Resolution 05-24-18C 
 
Prepared by: Madeline Becker, Parks and Recreation Coordinator  



RESOLUTION NO. 05-24-18C 

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING SUMMER KICKOFF BLOCK PARTY AS A “PUBLIC 
FESTIVAL” FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE CITY’S NOISE RESTRICTIONS 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Edgerton, Kansas wishes to provide a safe 
and enjoyable Summer Kickoff Block Party; and 

   
 WHEREAS, Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of Edgerton regulates the 
levels of noise and sound within the City but said regulations do not apply when the governing 
body recognizes the event where the noise and sound is to occur as a “public festival”.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS, THAT: 

SECTION ONE: Summer Kickoff Block Party a “Public Festival”: Edgerton Summer 
Kickoff Block Party is hereby recognized as a public festival and, therefore, the noise restrictions 
contained within Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of Edgerton shall not apply to 
noise and sounds made or generated by the public festival to be held on June 2, 2018. 

SECTION TWO: Effective Date: This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the Governing Body. 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 24TH DAY OF MAY 2018. 

      

ATTEST:     CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

______________________________  By: _______________________________ 

Scott Peterson, City Clerk          Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney 



 

Agenda Item: Consider Final Acceptance of the Dollar General/Project 
Eisenhower Public Infrastructure and Authorize Final Payment to Colby 
Series 17, LLC.  

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 24th, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #: 
 
Department: Public Works & Utilities   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
On October 26th, 2017 the City Council approved the Resolution of Intent for industrial 
revenue bonds for Colby Series 17, LLC. This resolution encompassed the construction and 
equipping of an approximately 7,500 sq. ft. retail building, located at 106 West 3rd Street in 
Edgerton, Kansas. As part of this new construction the City requested addressing the 
supporting infrastructure.  
 
New Section of W 3rd Street was extended off 56 Highway to the south. This section of 
roadway was constructed as a 36’ roadway at 8’’ concrete and approximately 250’ in length. 
This project also included all the supporting infrastructure including the addition of 
stormwater, sidewalk and trail, and the necessary supporting ADA items. This improvement 
provided access to the Dollar General 
 
Extension of the City’s water main was constructed to provide service to the Dollar General 
Facility. This extension was approximately 700’ of 8’’ PVC, that extends from the east along 56 
Highway, this was extended from the existing stub to just east of W 3rd Street, and includes 
the service to the building and the addition of a fire hydrant located on the south-east corner 
of 56 Highway and W 3rd Street.  
 
Extension of the City’s sanitary sewer main was constructed to provide service to the Dollar 
General Facility. The extension was approximately 200’ of 8’’ PVC and the addition of 2 
manhole vaults. This service was extended from the existing sanitary main south of the 
facility.  
 
BG Consultants as City’s Inspection has performed final inspection and noted project for final 
acceptance. There are a few items noted by the Inspector that Contractor will be addressed 
during the warranty period next spring. Staff would recommend City Council formally close the 



Recommendation: Approve Final Acceptance of the Dollar 
General/Project Eisenhower Public Infrastructure and Authorize Final 
Payment to Colby Series 17, LLC.  

West 3rd Street Public Improvements, Dollar General Water Main extension, and the Dollar 
General Sanitary Sewer Main extension.  
 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s):  n/a 

 
 
 
Funding Source:  Street Excise Tax Fund (street construction), Water Reserve Fund (water 
line construction), Sewer System Development Fund (sewer line construction) 
 
Budget Allocated:  Project was approved in the development agreement with Colby Series 
17, LLC approved by Council. 
 
Finance Director Approval:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: Email from BG Consultants regarding Project Completion. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 Trey Whitaker * Public Works Superintendent  
  
 

























 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution 05-24-18E Approving Banking Resolution with 
Central Bank of the Midwest 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date:  May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #: 
 
Department: Administration 

 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
 
The City maintains accounts at Central Bank of the Midwest to carry out the business of the 
City.  In May, 2014, the Governing Body passed Resolution No.05-22-14C documenting 
banking authority for staff and members of the Governing Body. Staff has reviewed this 
resolution and determined that updates are needed to reflect current staff. 
 
Changes to the banking resolution are: 

• Changed the name of the bank from Metcalf Bank to Central Bank of the Midwest.  Since 
the last banking resolution, the bank has changed its name. 

• Added Scott Peterson to the list of staff authorized to discuss the City’s general accounts 
as well as the Municipal Court account. 

• Changed the title for Karen Kindle from Accountant to Finance Director. 
• Removed Karen Weston. 

 
Staff will use this banking resolution to work with the bank to update their records for the City’s 
accounts. 
 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s):  Resolution No. 05-22-14C 

 
 
 
Funding Source:  n/a - this resolution denotes who has authority regarding the City’s bank 
accounts at Central Bank of the Midwest. 
 
Budget Allocated:  n/a 

Finance Director Approval:     
 

 



Recommendation:  Approve Resolution 05-24-18E, Banking Resolution with 
Central Bank of the Midwest 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed:  Banking Resolution 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 Karen Kindle * Finance Director 
  
 



RESOLUTION NO.  05-24-18E 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas, maintains accounts at Central Bank of the Midwest; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to designate by Resolution those members of the Governing 
Body and City of Edgerton Staff who are authorized to discuss accounts, withdraw funds, endorse 
or authorize checks, amend online banking preferences, be listed as authorized signors and take 
any and all other actions listed below involving City accounts at Central Bank of the Midwest. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Central Bank of the Midwest, (“Financial 
Institution”) is hereby designated a depository of the City of Edgerton, Kansas, for the purpose of 
banking services, and that with the exception of Municipal Court Account #***82, which is 
described further below  the following individuals are authorized to discuss with Financial 
Institution any and all City accounts:  
 
 Name   Title  
 Donald Roberts Mayor 

Elizabeth Linn  City Administrator 
Scott Peterson  Assistant City Administrator 

 Rachel James  City Clerk 
 Karen Kindle  Finance Director 
 Irene Eastwood City Treasurer 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following individuals are hereby individually authorized 
to open any deposit or checking accounts in the name of the City; to endorse or authorize checks 
and orders for the payment of money; and withdraw funds on deposit with  Financial Institution 
and shall be listed as signers on said account signature cards.  This authority shall be for all City 
accounts with the exception of Municipal Court Account #***82 which is described further below: 
 Name   Title  
 Donald Roberts Mayor 
 Elizabeth Linn  City Administrator 
 Rachel James  City Clerk 
 Irene Eastwood City Treasurer 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following individuals acting individually, are authorized 
to instruct  Financial Institution, either by written or verbal instructions, to make changes to the 
set up of the on-line banking system. 
 
 Name   Title  
 Donald Roberts Mayor 
 Elizabeth Linn  City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that for Municipal Court Account, account #***82, the 
following individuals are hereby individually authorized to endorse or authorize checks and 



orders for the payment of money; and withdraw funds on deposit with  Financial Institution in  
Municipal Court Account, account #***82, and shall be listed as signers on said account 
signature cards: 
 
 Name   Title  
 Donald Roberts Mayor 
 Elizabeth Linn  City Administrator 
  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following individuals are hereby authorized to discuss  
Municipal Court Account, account #***82: 
 
  

Name   Title  
 Donald Roberts Mayor 
 Elizabeth Linn  City Administrator 
 Scott Peterson  Assistant City Administrator 
 Karen Kindle  Finance Director 
   
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City acknowledges and agrees that Financial Institution 
may rely on alternative signature and verification codes issued to or obtained from the individual(s) 
named on this resolution.  The Term “alternative signature and verification codes” includes, but is 
not limited to, facsimile signatures on file with the Financial Institution, personal identification 
numbers (PIN), and digital signatures.  If a facsimile signature specimen has been provided on this 
resolution, (or that is filed separately by the City with Financial Institution from time to time)  
Financial Institution is authorized to treat the facsimile signature as the signature of the 
individual(s) regardless of by whom or by what means the facsimile signature may have been 
affixed so long as it resembles the facsimile signature on file.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall continue in force and Central Bank of 
the Midwest may consider the facts concerning and holders of said offices, respectively, and their 
signatures, to be and continue as set forth herewith until written notice to the contrary is duly 
served on said financial institution. 
 
    ADOPTED THIS 24 DAY OF MAY, 2018, 
 
  
       By: ________________________________ 
             Donald Roberts, Mayor 
    ATTEST: 
 
    ____________________________ 
    Scott Peterson, City Clerk 
 



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-24-18F Temporarily Waiving City 
Prohibition As To The Sale And Consumption Of Alcoholic Liquor On Certain Public 
Property, And Recognizing Frontier Days As A “Public Festival” For Purposes Of The 
City’s Noise Restrictions 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item #: 19 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
 
Edgerton Frontier Days will be held June 15-16, 2018. The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee 
has requested permission to sell and serve alcoholic liquor (i.e. alcoholic beverages other than 
3.2% beer [a/k/a cereal malt beverage]) at the Festival.  
 
Chapter III, Article I, Section 3-202 of the Code of the City of Edgerton prohibits serving 
alcoholic liquor within 200 feet of a church, school, nursing home, library or hospital. This 
prohibition may be waived by the governing body after public notice, followed by a hearing 
and finding by the governing body that the proximity of the location, where the alcoholic 
liquor will be served, is not adverse to the public welfare or safety.  
 
City Council will hold a Public Hearing on May 24, 2018 prior to considering this resolution. 
 
If approved, Resolution No. 05-24-18F would grant the waiver requested by the Frontier Days 
Association, with the following stipulations: 
 

• The sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor shall be allowed in an area on Nelson 
Street between East Third Street and East Fourth Street (specifically designated and 
approved by the City Administrator) 

• Between the hours of 6:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 15, 2018. 
• Between the hours of 2:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 16, 2018. 
• Point of sale for alcoholic liquor shall be 307 E. Nelson Street by properly licensed 

individuals or groups only 
• No alcoholic liquor may be sold or dispensed in glass bottles or containers, only plastic, 

paper cups or cans may be used. 
 



Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-24-18F Temporarily Waiving City 
Prohibition As To The Sale And Consumption Of Alcoholic Liquor On Certain Public 
Property, And Recognizing Frontier Days As A “Public Festival” For Purposes Of The 
City’s Noise Restrictions 

Also within this same resolution is permission to waive the City’s noise restrictions in order for 
all to enjoy music as part of the festival on Friday June 15 and Saturday June 16.  It is 
anticipated that both concerts will be completed by 11:59 p.m. each evening. 
 
City staff will inform the Johnson County Sheriff’s Office of the proposed request to serve 
alcoholic liquor on the above dates and hours as well as the request to waive the City’s noise 
restrictions.   
 
City Attorney has not yet reviewed the resolution and will provide any changes at City Council 
meeting. 
 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): Chapter III, Article I, Section 3-202 

 
 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: 
Draft Resolution No. 05-24-18F 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator  
  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 05-24-18F 
 
A RESOLUTIONTEMPORARILY WAIVING CITY PROHIBITION AS TO THE SALE AND 
CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON CERTAIN PUBLIC PROPERTY, AND 
RECOGNIZING FRONTIER DAYS AS A “PUBLIC FESTIVAL” FOR PURPOSES OF THE 
CITY’S NOISE RESTRICTIONS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2018 annual celebration known as Frontier Days will be held June 15 
through June 16 in the City of Edgerton, Kansas; and 
  
 WHEREAS, a request has been received by the City of Edgerton from the Edgerton 
Frontier Days Association for permission to sell and serve alcoholic liquor (i.e. alcoholic beverages 
other than 3.2% beer [a/k/a cereal malt beverage]) at its annual festival; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter III, Article 1, Section 3-202 of the Code of the City of Edgerton 
prohibits the serving alcoholic liquor within 200 feet of a church, school, nursing home, library or 
hospital, but said prohibition may be waived by the governing body after public notice, followed 
by a hearing and finding by the governing body that the proximity of the location, where the 
cereal malt beverage or alcoholic liquor will be served, is not adverse to the public welfare or 
safety; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of Edgerton regulates the 
levels of noise and sound within the City but said regulations do not apply when the governing 
body recognizes the event where the noise and sound is to occur as a “public festival”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to recognize this event as a “public festival” and to be exempt 
from any noise or sound restrictions during the pendency of the event.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION ONE: Finding: That the Governing Body, after receiving a request from the Frontier 
Days Association, does hereby find and conclude that the proximity of the requested location for 
the sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor is not adverse to the public welfare or safety and the 
Governing Body's conclusion in this regard is supported by the fact that the Frontier Days 
Association has served cereal malt beverages in this location for several years without any 
adversity to the public welfare or safety. 
 
SECTION TWO: Waiver Granted: That the Governing Body, pursuant to Chapter III, Article I, 
Section 3-202 of the Edgerton City Code, hereby grants the waiver requested by the Frontier 
Days Association, with the following stipulations: 
 

a) The sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor shall be allowed in an area on Nelson 
Street between East Third Street and East Fourth Street (specifically designated and 
approved by the City Administrator) between the hours of 6:00 pm and 11:59 pm on 
June 15, 2018 and between the hours of 2:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 16, 2018. 



b) The location of the point of sale for alcoholic liquor shall be 307 E. Nelson Street by 
properly licensed individuals or groups only. 

c) No alcoholic liquor may be sold or dispensed in glass bottles or containers, only plastic, 
paper cups or cans may be used. 

 
SECTION THREE: Frontier Days a “Public Festival”: Edgerton Frontier Days is recognized as 
a public festival and, therefore, the noise restrictions contained within Article 6 of Chapter XI of 
the Code of the City of Edgerton shall not apply to noise and sounds made or generated by the 
2018 public festival on June 15 and 16. 
 
SECTION FOUR - Effective Date: This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the Governing Body. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 24TH DAY OF MAY 2018. 
      
ATTEST:      CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 
______________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Scott Peterson, Interim City Clerk          Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney  



City Council Action Item 

Council Meeting Date: May 24, 2018 

Agenda Item #:  

Department: Community Development 

Background/Description of Item: The City of Edgerton received an application ZA-2018-
02 for rezoning from Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC represented by NorthPoint 
Development, LLC requesting to rezone approximately 120 acres located on the northeast 
corner of Four Corners Road and 199th Street from Johnson County RUR to City of Edgerton 
Logistics Park (L-P) zoning. The majority of the property requested to be rezoned was 
annexed into the City of Edgerton on March 27, 2014 with a small remnant parcel annexed in 
on March 22, 2018. NPD Management LLC has requested to rezone the parcel to Logistics 
Park District (L-P) to accommodate future intermodal-related, logistics park development as 
part of Logistics Park Kansas City Phase II. 

Staff reviewed this rezoning application with respect to the Edgerton Comprehensive Plan, 
Zoning and Subdivision Regulations, and the laws in Kansas, in particular the “Golden Criteria” 
as established by the Supreme Court of Kansas in 1978. Attached is the staff report including 
the review of this rezoning based on the Golden Criteria. The Planning Commission held a 
public hearing on May 8, 2018 regarding this rezoning. The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the application with the following stipulations:  

1. All infrastructure requirements of the City shall be met.
2. All platting requirements of the City shall be met.
3. All Site Plan application requirements of the City shall be met.
4. Prior to issuance of building permits, the property shall have an approved Site Plan

reviewed and approved by the City.

Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s):  K.S.A. 12-715b, K.S.A. 12-741, et. Seq. to K.S.A. 12-
771 – Establishment of the Unified Development Code 

Agenda Item: Consider Ordinance No. 1081 Adopting A Recommendation 
By The City Planning Commission To Approve Rezoning Of Approximately 
120 Acres Of Land [Located On The Northeast Corner Of Four Corners 
Road and 199th Street] In Edgerton, Kansas From Johnson County RUR, 
Rural Zoning To City Of Edgerton L-P Logistics Park Zoning District 



Funding Source:  N/A 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 

 
 
Enclosed: 

• Ordinance No. 1081 
• Staff Report from May 8, 2018 Planning Commission 
• Application ZA-2018-02 
• Draft minutes of May 8, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting 

 
 
Prepared by: Katy Crow, Development Services Director 
  
 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance No. 1081 Adopting A 
Recommendation By The City Planning Commission To Approve Rezoning 
Of Approximately 120 Acres Of Land [Located At The Northeast Corner Of 
Four Corners Road and 199th Street] In Edgerton, Kansas From Johnson 
County RUR, Rural Zoning To City Of Edgerton L-P Logistics Park Zoning 
District 



ORDINANCE NO. 1081 
 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A RECOMMENDATION BY THE CITY OF EDGERTON 
PLANNING COMMISSION TO APPROVE REZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 120 
ACRES OF LAND [LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION 
OF FOUR CORNERS ROAD AND 199TH STREET] IN EDGERTON, KANSAS FROM 
JOHNSON COUNTY "RUR" RURAL DISTRICT TO CITY OF EDGERTON "L-P" 
LOGISTICS PARK ZONING DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended that a rezoning request -- 
from Johnson County "RUR" Rural District to City of Edgerton "L-P" Logistics Park District -- 
be approved (with certain conditions) for approximately 120 acres of land, located at the 
northeast corner of the intersection of Four Corners Road and 199th Street in Edgerton; and 
 

WHEREAS, all newspaper and mailed notifications were performed and a public 
hearing was properly held before the City Planning Commission on May 8, 2018. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS: 
 

Section 1. That the following legally described property (located at the northeast 
corner of the intersection of Four Corners Road and 199th Street) is hereby rezoned from 
Johnson County "RUR" Rural District to City of Edgerton "L-P" Logistics Park Zoning District, 
and City Staff is directed to reflect said rezoning in the City's Official Zoning map and other 
City records: 

 
Overall (Tract 1 & 2) 
 
THE NORTH HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER, AND THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 15, RANGE 22 IN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 
JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, BEING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS; 
 
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 
88 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 2633.20 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE EAST 
LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1315.72 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88 
DEGREES 32 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH HALF OF 
SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1317.46 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 11 
MINUTES 37 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1316.95 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 
ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 1317.65 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST 
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 2635.26 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINS: 5,202,152 SQUARE FEET OR 119.425 ACRES MORE 
OR LESS. SUBJECT TO THAT PART TAKEN AND USED FOR ROAD RIGHT OF WAY. 
 



 
Section 2. The above rezoning is expressly conditioned on the following: 
 

a) All infrastructure requirements of the City shall be met. 
b) All platting requirements of the City shall be met. 
c) All Site Plan application requirements of the City shall be met. 
d) Prior to issuance of building permits, the property shall have an approved Site Plan 

reviewed and approved by the City. 
 

Section 3. That the Governing Body, in making its decision on the rezoning, 
considered City Staff's comments and recommendations. The Governing Body also based 
its decision on the following criteria: 
 

a) The character of the neighborhood, including but not limited to: zoning, existing 
and approved land use, platting, density (residential), natural features, and open 
space. 

b) Compatibility of the proposed zoning and uses permitted therein with the zoning and 
uses of nearby properties. 

c) The extent to which the zoning amendment may detrimentally affect nearby 
property has been addressed. 

d) The relative gain (if any) to the public health, safety, and welfare from a denial of 
the rezoning application as compared to the hardship imposed upon the rezoning 
applicant from such denial. 

e) Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, Utilities and Facilities Plans, Capital 
Improvement Plan, Area Plans, ordinances, policies, and applicable City Code of the 
City of Edgerton. 

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be enforced from and after its 

publication once in the official city newspaper. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 24th DAY OF MAY, 2018. 
 
 
      CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 
      By: ____________________________ 
       Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Scott Peterson, Interim City Clerk 
 



 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Lee Hendricks, City Attorney 
 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
May 8, 2018 
 
To: Edgerton Planning Commission 
Fr:  Katy Crow, Development Services Director 
Re: Application ZA-2018-02 Rezoning for a parcel of land generally located at the NE 

corner of the intersection at 199th Street and Four Corners Road, extending east to 
Homestead Lane.  

  
  
APPLICATION INFORMATION 
 
Applicant: NorthPoint Development LLC 
 4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500 
 Riverside, MO  64150 
  
 
Property Owner: Edgerton Land Holding Company LLC 
 4825 NW 41st Street, Suite 500 
 Riverside, MO  64150 
  
 
Requested Action:  Rezoning from Johnson County RUR, Rural zoning to 

L-P, Logistics Park Zoning District, City of Edgerton. 
 
Legal Description: N1/2 of SE Quarter and SW Quarter of SE Quarter of 

Section 4, Township 15, Range 22 in the City of 
Edgerton, Kansas. See attached exhibits. 

 
Site Address/Location: The NE corner at the intersection of Four Corners 

Road and 199th Street, east to Homestead Lane. 
 
Existing Zoning and Land Uses: Johnson County Rural (RUR) and agricultural uses.  
 
Existing Improvements: None.  
 
Site Size: Approximately 120 acres.  
 
 
REASON FOR REZONING REQUEST: 
The majority of this land was annexed into the City of Edgerton on March 27, 2014 with a 
small remnant parcel annexed in on March 22, 2018. This rezoning is being requested for 
future intermodal-related, logistics park development. The Burlington Northern Santa Fe 
Railway (BNSF) intermodal facility is currently under development approximately one-half mile 
north of the subject site. Logistics Park Kansas City (LPKC), is a 1,700 -acre master-planned 



ZA 2018-02 – Rezoning - Staff Report                                                                Page 2 of 6 
 

distribution and warehouse development anchored by BNSF Railway’s intermodal facility, 
which opened in late 2013. Companies located at LPKC benefit from significant transportation 
savings and direct access to heavy-haul corridors.  
 
The subject property is surrounded by parkland owned by Johnson County Parks & Recreation 
District on the west, existing LPKC operations to the north, the low-density rural, single-family 
residential development Pepper Tree Farms to the south across W 199th Street and landscape 
nursery operations across Homestead Lane to the east. The proposed rezoning parcel has 
frontage along Four Corners Road, Homestead Lane and W 199th Street. The subject property 
is outlined in red and shown in Figures 1 and 2 below.  
 

 
Figure 1 

 

 
Figure 2 



ZA 2018-02 – Rezoning - Staff Report                                                                Page 3 of 6 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The rezoning request is to support a project which will construct and operate warehouse and 
distribution facilities with ancillary office uses. 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND SERVICES 

1. Access to the property would be from 199th Street.  
2. Utilities and service providers. 

a. Water - Johnson County Water District #7 
b. Sanitary Sewer - City of Edgerton 
c. Electrical Service - Kansas City Power & Light 
d. Gas Service – Kansas Gas Service 
e. Police service is provided by the city of Edgerton through the Johnson County 

Sheriff’s Office 
f. Fire protection is provided by Johnson County Fire District #1 

3. Property is located within the Bull Creek watershed, Marais De Cygnes river basin. 
 
 
PROPERTY ZONING HISTORY 
The majority of the subject property was annexed into the City of Edgerton on March 27, 2014 
with a small remnant parcel annexed in on March 22, 2018. Prior to that, the property was in 
unincorporated Johnson County and as of this application it remains zoned Johnson County 
RUR, in accordance with Article 1, Section 1.9 of the Edgerton Unified Development Code. 
 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
The applicant has requested rezoning to L-P, Logistics Park. The City’s Unified Development 
Code (UDC) states the purpose of the L-P District is to create a limited multimodal industrial 
zone that provides for a modern type of industrial uses or industrial park to support activities 
related to trade, rail and other transport services. Limitations are placed on the uses in the 
district to significantly restrict the outside activities and outside storage of materials, noise, 
vibration, etc. The UDC also states manufacturing uses should be conducted within a totally 
enclosed building. Any activities conducted outside should be screened and buffered, and 
external effects such as excessive noise or odor should not extend beyond the property lines.  
 
Permitted uses within the L-P District include warehousing/distribution centers; motor freight 
transportation terminals; manufacturing, processing, fabrication or assembly of commodity – 
limited; and other permitted uses.  
 
Staff has reviewed this rezoning application with respect to the Edgerton Unified Development 
Code, the laws of Kansas, and the “Golden Criteria” as established by the Supreme Court of 
Kansas in 1978.  The following is staff’s review. 
 

1. Need for the Proposed Change - The applicant has requested L-P Zoning District 
designation to support construction of the project. Given the property’s proximity to 
LPKC, the BNSF Railway intermodal facility and the highway L-P Zoning District is the 
most compatible designation for these uses. 

2. Magnitude of the Change - The existing County zoning is considered a holding 
designation. The Future Land Use Map contained in the Comprehensive Plan has the 



ZA 2018-02 – Rezoning - Staff Report                                                                Page 4 of 6 
 

property designated as appropriate and acceptable for Business Park/Industrial uses.  
Staff believes the proposed rezoning is compatible with the spirit and intent of future 
development outlined by the Comprehensive Plan and depicted by the Future Land Use 
Map. Due to the property’s proximity to LPKC, the BNSF Railway intermodal facility and 
interstate highway, the magnitude of the change is not considered extreme or rare 
when property is being developed for its designated and planned end use, in this case 
industrial development.  

3. Whether or not the change will bring harm to established property rights -  
The subject property is predominately surrounded by undeveloped acreage, road right-
of-way and low-density rural single-family residential uses. If rezoned L-P, as 
requested, a separate Site Plan review and approval will be required before building 
permits can be issued. Part of a Site Plan review will include attention to buffering and 
setbacks, stormwater management and transition of uses between adjoining uses and 
any proposed industrial use. This Site Plan review will help mitigate impacts that might 
occur to adjacent properties. 

4. Effective use of Land - L-P District permitted uses at this location is an effective and 
efficient use of the property due to its proximity to the BNSF Railway intermodal 
facility, LPKC and the interstate.   

5. The extent to which there is a need in the community for the uses allowed in 
the proposed zoning - Construction of warehousing, distribution, limited 
manufacturing and related facilities near the intermodal facility allows an inland port 
for goods in transit, by reducing truck traffic in the surrounding area and allowing for 
more efficient use of the supply chain. 

6. The character of the neighborhood, including but not limited to: zoning, 
existing and approved land use, platting, density (residential), natural 
features, and open space – The area continues to undergo intermodal development 
and with the extensive road improvements, and the interchange at I-35 and 
Homestead Lane, the character of the area is changing from rural to industrial. 
Properties to the south of the applicant property remain in unincorporated Johnson 
County, with a mixture of rural residential acreage, vacant land, and farming. Property 
to the east, while still in agriculture use, are developing with Industrial, Logistic Park 
Uses. Property to the west includes Milldale Farms, a regional park with floodplain 
areas and will generally remain undeveloped, providing open space, wildlife corridors, 
stream way buffers, and hiking, biking, and pedestrian corridors. 

7. Compatibility of the proposed zoning and uses permitted therein with the 
zoning and uses of nearby properties - The proposed zoning is compatible with 
the planned future uses of the surrounding property, specifically to the north and east.  
The City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) states the purpose of the L-P District is to 
create a limited multimodal industrial zone that provides for modern types of industrial 
uses or an industrial park. Limitations are placed on uses in the district to significantly 
restrict outside activities and the outside storage of materials, noise, vibration, etc. The 
site plan review process can mitigate impacts to adjacent properties with the proper 
attention to buffering and setbacks, stormwater management, and transition of uses. 

8. Suitability of the uses to which the property has been restricted under its 
existing zoning - The existing Johnson County RUR zoning of the applicant property 
is not suitable for the proposed distribution warehouse and limited manufacturing 
industrial use sought by the applicant. The Johnson County RUR zoning is a County 
designation primarily for agricultural use; an industrial use in a property annexed by 



ZA 2018-02 – Rezoning - Staff Report                                                                Page 5 of 6 
 

the City but zoned for agriculture by the County would not be compatible or 
appropriate. Therefore, a rezoning to the L-P district is the most appropriate 
designation for the proposed use.  

9. Length of time the subject property has remained vacant under the current 
zoning designation - Based upon available aerial photography, prior to annexation 
the property was agricultural use in unincorporated Johnson County for the previous 
70-plus years. 

10. The extent to which the zoning amendment may detrimentally affect nearby 
property - The proposed zoning is compatible with the planned future uses of the 
surrounding property, specifically to the adjacent north and to the east adjacent to 
Waverly Road.  The City’s Unified Development Code (UDC) states the purpose of the 
L-P District is to create a limited multimodal industrial zone that provides for modern 
types of industrial uses or an industrial park. Limitations are placed on uses in the 
district to significantly restrict outside activities and the outside storage of materials, 
noise, vibration, etc. The site plan review process can mitigate impacts to adjacent 
properties with the proper attention to buffering and setbacks, stormwater 
management, and transition of uses. 

11. Consideration of rezoning applications requesting Planned Development 
Districts (PUD) for multifamily and non-residential uses should include 
architectural style, building materials, height, structural mass, siting, and lot 
coverage - This is not a request for a PUD.  

12. The availability and adequacy of required utilities and services to serve the 
uses allowed in the proposed zoning. These utilities and services include, 
but are not limited to, sanitary and storm sewers, water, electrical and gas 
service, police and fire protection, schools, parks and recreation facilities 
and services, and other similar public facilities and services -  The subject 
property is bordered by Four Corners Road, Homestead Lane, and 199th Street. Staff is 
evaluating the current capacity of 199th Street. Depending on how the property is 
developed and the type of access sought, these roads could require improvements to 
better accommodate the anticipated development of this property. Homestead Lane 
and the intersection at 199th Street have already been improved to a standard that will 
accommodate industrial development. Utilities will be provided by the developer or the 
City in conjunction with development of the property.  

13. The extent to which the uses allowed in the proposed zoning would adversely 
affect the capacity or safety of that portion of the road network influenced by 
the uses, or present parking problems in the vicinity of the property – 
Homestead Lane and the intersection at 199th Street are improved to a standard that 
can accommodate industrial development traffic in the area. The City is in discussions 
regarding Four Corners Road and 199th Street to determine what improvements, if any, 
are needed so appropriate access can be achieved and the surrounding transportation 
network function.  

14. The environmental impacts that the uses allowed in the proposed zoning 
would create (if any) including, but not limited to, excessive storm water 
runoff, water pollution, air pollution, noise pollution, excessive nighttime 
lighting or other environmental harm - The City will follow National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) guidelines and stormwater management 
requirements which require any application to address runoff and water pollution 
mitigation measures as part of the development of the property.  Mitigation of 



ZA 2018-02 – Rezoning - Staff Report                                                                Page 6 of 6 
 

pollution in the form of air, noise, light, etc., will be addressed as part of the Site Plan 
review process.   

15. The economic impact on the community from the uses allowed in the 
proposed zoning - Uses allowed in the L-P District, have the potential to benefit the 
residents and community in a positive way by providing jobs, economic opportunities 
and tax revenue to respective jurisdictions.  

16. The relative gain (if any) to the public health, safety, and welfare from a 
denial of the rezoning application as compared to the hardship imposed 
upon the rezoning applicant from such denial -  There would be little relative 
gain, if any, to the public health, safety, and welfare from the denial of this zoning 
application. However, The City would be adversely impacted due to the lost 
opportunities for jobs, economic activity and tax revenue if the anticipated logistics 
park uses and facilities were to locate in another community. 

17. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, Capital Improvement Plan, 
ordinances, policies, and applicable City Code of the City of Edgerton - The 
Comprehensive Plan for the City of Edgerton has the area which the property is in 
designated as appropriate for zoning and uses associated with business park and 
industrial zoning. City staff believes that the requested rezoning is compatible with the 
spirit and intent of future development outlined in the Comprehensive Plan, the 
Johnson County Southwest Area Plan and Future Land Use Map.  

18. The recommendation of professional staff - See Recommendation below 
 
Recommendation:  
City staff recommends approval of the proposed rezoning of the subject property from 
Johnson County RUR, to City of Edgerton Logistics Park District (L-P) with the following 
stipulations: 
 

1. All infrastructure requirements of the City shall be met.  
2. All platting requirements of the City shall be met. 
3. All Site Plan application requirements of the City shall be met. 
4. Prior to issuance of building permits, the property shall have an approved Site Plan 

reviewed and approved by the City. 
 
Reasons for Recommendation for Rezoning: (Incorporate all or part of #1-18 above in motion) 
 
Attachments:  

- Application for Rezoning ZA2018-02 including ALTA/NSPS Land Title Survey Drawing 
- City of Edgerton Future Land Use Map  





EDGERTON COMMUNITY BUILDING 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

REGULAR SESSION 
May 8, 2018 

 
 
The Edgerton Planning Commission met in regular session with Chair John Daley calling the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m.  

All present participated in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

The Roll Call was answered, indicating those present were:  Commissioners John Daley, Katee Smith,  
and Josh Beem.  Absent were Commissioners Andrew Merriman and Erik Erazo.  Also present were: 
City Administrator Beth Linn, Development Services Director Katy Crow, and Recording Officer Debra 
Gragg. 

The Recording Officer announced a quorum was present. 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2018-2019 
After brief discussion, the members nominated the following list of officers:  John Daley – Chair; Katee 
Smith – Vice-Chair; and Andrew Merriman – Secretary. 

Motion by Beem, seconded by Smith, to accept and approve the nominations for Planning Commission 
officers for 2018-2019.  The motion was approved, 3-0. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Smith, seconded by Beem, to approve the item as presented in the Consent Agenda.  Motion 
was approved, 3-0. 
 

MINUTES 
A. Minutes for the Regular Session of April 10, 2018 were considered and approved. 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING FOR NORTHEAST CORNER OF FOUR CORNERS ROAD AND 
199TH STREET, ZA2018-02 
The opening of a public hearing in regard to rezoning application, ZA2018-02, pertaining to the 
rezoning of property from Johnson County RUR and UTILITY to City of Edgerton L-P (Logistics Park) 
located in the Northeast Corner of Four Corners Road and 199th Street, containing approximately 
119.425 acres, more or less.  Applicant: NorthPoint Development LLC/Edgerton Land Holding 
Company LLC Management  Engineer:  Renaissance Infrastructure Consulting 
 
The Development Services Director overviewed the history and reason for the rezoning request.  She 
indicated the majority of the property was annexed in March 2014 with a small remnant annexed earlier 
in 2018.  She noted the rezoning is request for future intermodal-related, logistics park development.  
She also noted the property is surrounded by Johnson County Parks and Recreation district, LPKC 
operations, low-density rural, single-family, and landscape nursery operations.  The project has 
frontage along Four Corners Road, Homestead Land and West 199th Street. 
 
Ms. Crow stated the applicant’s request is for L-P, Logistics Park and overviewed the proposed uses 
within the noted district.  She also noted staff reviewed the application in respect to the Unified 
Development Code, laws of Kansas and the “Golden Criteria.” 



Edgerton Planning Commission 
Regular Session 
May 8, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Ms. Crow stated due to proximity to the LPKC, BNSF railway intermodal facility and the interstate, the 
L-P zoning district is the most compatible, adding the Future Land Use Map contained in the 
Comprehensive Plan has the property designated as appropriate and acceptable for business 
park/industrial uses, adding this change is not considered extreme or rare in the development.  She 
noted the Site Plan review will help to mitigate impacts that might occur to the adjacent properties, 
which could include buffering, setbacks, stormwater management, and transition of uses.  
 
The Commissioners were informed the request is an effective use of the land due to the proximity of the 
BNSF Railway intermodal, LPKC and Interstate 35.  It was also noted the need for the community 
would be enhanced due to uses related to nearby facilities which allows for inland port for goods in 
transit, and by reducing truck traffic in area and allowing for more efficient use of the supply chain.  
 
Ms. Crow also noted the area continues to add intermodal development with major road improvements, 
adding the character of the area is changing from rural to industrial.  It was noted properties south of 
this area contain a mixture of unincorporated Johnson County which includes residential, vacant, and 
farm lands.  It was also noted property to east is beginning to develop with industrial and Logistics Park 
uses; and to the west is located Milldale Farms, regional park with flood plain areas which will generally 
remain undeveloped, providing for open space, wildlife, stream way buffers, hiking, biking and 
pedestrian uses.  The Development Services Director also noted the proposed zoning is compatible 
with the planned future uses of the surround property, which includes limitations on use for outside 
activities and storage of materials, noise, vibration, etc., with site plan reviews to provide potential 
mitigation of impacts to adjacent properties with attention to buffering, setbacks, stormwater 
management, and transition of uses. In addition, it was noted the existing zoning is not suitable for the 
proposed distribution warehouse and limited manufacturing industrial use for which the applicant is 
requesting, noting the L-P district is the most appropriate usage. 
 
The Commissioners were informed this property has remained vacant under the current zoning for at 
least 70 years.  They were also informed the proposed request is compatible with planned future uses 
of the surrounding property, specifically to the adjacent north and east adjacent to Waverly Road.  It 
was noted the property is surrounded by Four Corners Road, Homestead Lane and 199th Street.  They 
were informed staff is evaluating the capacity of 199th Street to determine if improvements to 
accommodate the anticipated development is needed.  It was stated that Homestead Lane and 
intersection at 199th Street has been improved to the standard which will accommodate industrial 
development.  They were informed the developer or the City will determine how other utilities will be 
added to accommodate the needs of the project.  The roadway network, which includes Homestead 
Lane and intersection at 199th Street, is improved to accommodate industrial traffic, staff is reviewing 
Four Corners Road and 199th Street to determine any needs necessary. 
 
Ms. Crow focused on the environmental impacts and informed the Planning Commission the City 
follows the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) guidelines, adding the 
requirements will be reviewed and addressed as part of the Site Plan review.   
 
Staff noted the uses allowed in the requested zoning has the potential to benefit the community in the 
positive by providing jobs, tax revenue and economic opportunities.  It was also stated that denial of 
this request would not significantly add to the public health, safety or welfare.  It was noted the 
Comprehensive plan has the area designated as appropriate for zoning and uses associated with 
business park and industrial zoning, adding staff believes the requested rezoning is compatible with the 
spirit and intent of future development as outlined in the Comprehensive Plan, Johnson County 
Southwest Area Plan and Future Land Use Map. Staff recommends approval with certain stipulations. 



Edgerton Planning Commission 
Regular Session 
May 8, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Chris Chancellor, representing ELHC, stated his concurrence with staff’s comments and 
recommendations. He stated the utilities are available to serve on the north side. 
 
Chair Daley opened the public hearing. 
 
James Cahill, 19901 Peppertree Lane, Edgerton, KS stated he was interested in the timeline of the 
project. 
 
Motion by Smith, seconded by Beem, to close the hearing.  Motion passed 3-0. 
 
City Administrator Beth Linn stated the preliminary plat and site plan will be considered at the next 
Planning Commission meeting and more information regarding the project will be known then. 
 
Motion by Smith, seconded by Beem, to approve the rezoning requested with the following stipulations: 
1.) All infrastructure requirements of the City shall be met; 2.) All platting requirements of the City shall 
be met; 3.) All Site Plan application requirements of the City shall be met; and 4.) Prior to issuance of 
the building permits, the property shall have an approved Site Plan reviewed and approved by the City.  
The motion was approved, 3-0. 
 
Ms. Linn announced the rezoning request would be considered by the Edgerton City Council on May 
24, 2018. 
 
FUTURE MEETING 
The next meeting is scheduled for June 12, 2018. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Beem, seconded by Smith, to adjourn.  Motion was approved, 3-0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Debra S. Gragg 
Recording Officer 
 



 CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Council Meeting Date:   May 24, 2018 
 
Agenda Item: Ordinance Authorizing Creation of LPKC District No. 1 CID 
 
Subject:   Community Improvement District and Development Agreement for LPKC District No. 1  
 

 
 
Summary:  
 
 In Article 6 of the Phase 2 Development Agreement for the Logistics Park, the City agreed to allow the Developer 
to petition the City for the creation of a community improvement district on some or all of the Phase Two Land.  The parties 
agreed that the Petition could only seek financing by special assessments and would be funded on a pay-as-you go method.  
The Development Agreement further provided that the special assessments would be equal to $0.05 a sq. ft. for all structures 
constructed within the district that are 50,000 sq. ft. or larger and constitute a warehouse, manufacturing or distribution 
facility.  The special assessments shall run for a 10-year term that coincides with the term of property tax abatement for the 
project. 
 
 The Developer has submitted a Petition to create the LPKC District No. 1 Community Improvement District.  The 
Developer has certified that is owns 100% of the land within the District.  The District covers what is known as the Kubota 
project.  The Petition requests the City to levy the special assessments provided for in the Development Agreement.  The 
special assessments will be used to pay for the demolition of existing improvements within the district and the design and 
construction of utility infrastructure improvements to accommodate industrial facilities to be constructed within the district.  
The total estimated costs of these projects is anticipated to be $2 million. 
 
Ordinance: 
 
 The Ordinance creates the LPKC District No. 1 Community Improvement District and levies the special 
assessments.  The Ordinance also approves the Development Agreement.  The Development Agreement contains the 
mechanisms for reimbursement of project costs to the Developer.  The Development Agreement also provides that the 
district will continue until such time that the City and the Developer agree that the project is complete. 



[Published in The Gardner News on May 30, 2018] 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 1082 
 
 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE LPKC 

DISTRICT NO. 1 COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, LEVYING 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS WITHIN SUCH DISTRICT, AND APPROVING 
A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, K.S.A. 12-6a26 et seq. (the “Act”) authorizes the Governing Body of a city to 
create a community improvement district to finance projects within a defined area of the city and to 
levy community improvement district special assessments upon receipt of a petition signed by the 
owners of all of the land area within the proposed district if full faith and credit bonds will not be 
issued; and 
  
 WHEREAS, a Petition for the Creation of a Community Improvement District (LPKC 
District No. 1) (the “Petition”) was filed with the City on May 18, 2018, proposing the creation of 
the LPKC District No. 1 Community Improvement District (the “District”) under the Act and the 
imposition of community improvement district special assessments (the “CID Special 
Assessments”) in order to pay the costs of projects as described in the Petition (the “Projects”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Petition was signed by Wellsville Farms, LLC, a Missouri limited liability 
company (the “Property Owner”), the owner of record of 100% of the land area contained in the 
proposed District and the owner of 100% by assessed value of the land area contained within the 
proposed District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”) hereby finds 
and determines it to be advisable to create the District and set forth the boundaries thereof, 
authorize the Projects as described herein, approve the estimated costs of the Projects and approve 
the method of financing the same, all in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City also desires to approve the LPKC District 

No. 1 Development Agreement dated June 1, 2018 (the “Development Agreement”), between the 
City and the Property Owner, to provide for the financing of the Projects. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Creation of Community Improvement District; Boundaries.  That the 
Governing Body hereby finds and determines that it is advisable to create, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, the District within the City to be referred to as the LPKC District No. 1 
Community Improvement District.  A map generally outlining the boundaries of the proposed 
District is attached as Exhibit A hereto and incorporated by reference herein.  A legal description 
of the boundaries of the proposed District is set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and 



incorporated by reference herein.   
 

 Section 2.  Authorization of Community Improvement District Projects and 
Estimated Costs.  The Projects consist of the demolition of existing improvements and the design 
and construction of utility infrastructure improvements to accommodate industrial facilities to be 
constructed within the District.  The total estimated cost of the Projects is $2,000,000. 
 

Section 3.  Method of Financing. 
 
(a) The Projects will be financed with the CID Special Assessments levied pursuant to 

the provisions of the Act and the costs of the Projects will be reimbursed on a pay-as-you-go basis, 
as defined in the Act.  The CID Special Assessments are hereby imposed on all vertical structures 
within the District that require a building permit to construct that constitute a warehouse, 
distribution, manufacturing, value-added assembly and/or office facility that is at least 50,000 
square feet in size (each, an “Improvement”).  The CID Special Assessment levied against each 
Improvement shall be an annual amount equal to the square footage of the Improvement multiplied 
by $0.05.  The CID Special Assessment shall be levied for a ten-year term, commencing during 
the calendar year following the year industrial revenue bonds are issued by the City for the 
Improvement, and may be paid in two installments in the same manner property taxes are paid. 

 
(b) There will be no issuance of bonds, including full faith and credit bonds, pursuant 

to the Act. 
 
(c) There will be no District sales tax. 

  
 Section 4.  Segregation of CID Special Assessments.  The CID Special Assessments 
collected shall be deposited into a special fund of the City to be designated as the LPKC District No. 
1 Community Improvement District Revenue Fund.  The CID Special Assessments collected shall 
be used to reimburse the costs of the Projects. 
 
 Section 5.  Development Agreement.  The Development Agreement, in substantially the 
form presented to the Governing Body of the City at this meeting, is hereby approved, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Development Agreement. 
 

Section 6.  Recording.  The City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance with 
the Register of Deeds of Johnson County, Kansas 
 
 Section 7.  Term of District.  The term of the District shall continue until such time that the 
District is terminated in the manner set forth in the Development Agreement.  The City shall record 
written evidence of the termination of the District with the Register of Deeds of Johnson County, 
Kansas when the District is terminated. 

 
Section 8.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and 

after its passage by the Governing Body of the City and publication once in the official City 
newspaper. 
 



 PASSED by the Council of the City of Edgerton, Kansas, this 24th day of May, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Scott Peterson, Interim City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LPKC District No. 1 Community Improvement District 

 



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
MAP OF CID DISTRICT 

 
 
 

 



EXHIBIT “B” 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF CID DISTRICT 
 

 
All that part of the Southeast and Southwest Quarters of Section 10, Township 15 South, 
Range 22 East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, together with all that part of Lots 1 thru 4, 
inclusive, ROCKWALL ESTATES, a platted subdivision, all in the City of Edgerton, 
Johnson County, Kansas, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the South Quarter corner of said Section 10; thence on Kansas State Plane 
North Zone bearings, South 88°11'14" West, coincident with the South line of the 
Southwest Quarter of said Section 10, a distance of 1,686.12 feet; thence departing said 
South line, North 45°15'45" West, coincident with the centerline of Homestead Road, as 
it now exists, a distance of 1,235.76 feet; thence departing said centerline, North 
02°16'47" West a distance of 106.90 feet; thence North 87°45'15" East a distance of 
1,237.62 feet; thence North 02°16'53" West a distance of 1,626.96 feet to a point on the 
North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 10; thence North 88°01'05" East, 
coincident with the North line of said Southwest Quarter, a distance of 1,292.89 feet to 
the Northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 10; thence North 88°18'55" 
East, coincident with the North line of said Southeast Quarter, a distance of 1,788.29 feet; 
thence departing said North line, South 01°48'46" East a distance of 2,589.48 feet to a 
point on the North right-of-way line of 207th Street, as it now exists; thence South 
88°09'59" West, coincident with said North right-of-way line, a distance of 223.41 feet to 
the Southwest corner of said Lot 4, ROCKWALL ESTATES; thence departing said North 
right-of-way line, South 02°17'25" East, a distance of 50.00 feet to a point on the South 
line of said Southeast Quarter; thence South 88°09'59" West, coincident with said South 
line, a distance of 1,545.62 feet to the Point of Beginning, containing 8,971,222 square 
feet, or 205.951 acres, more or less. 
 
 


	Agenda 05-24-18.pdf
	4. Minutes 05-10-18
	5. CAI Resolution No. 05-24-18A 2018 Annual Appointments
	6. City Council Action Item_Utility Tractor
	7. Roller
	8. Summer Kickoff Block Party Street Closures
	9. CAI Summer Kickoff Public Event
	12. Eisenhower Acceptance
	13. Banking Resolution
	17. CAI Frontier Days Liquor Separation Requirement
	19. Rezoning
	20. CAI Ordinance No. 1082 CID



